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RAISING AND CEASING.

When, about five hundred years ago, young English-
men discovered that bell ringing could be a first class
sport, and so broke away from what had for long been
the ordinary usage of Christendom, the very first thing
they practised was raising and falling in peal. It had
to be so, because the fittings at the time and the manner
in which bells were hung did not permit anything else,
not even round ringing except as a part of the raising
and falling. That waS fhe germ from which all our
modern art has developed by a logical process, and we
may be certain that it would not have become so popular
as it did, and it would not have led on to higher things,
if it, had not called for the exercise of a very great
amount of skill.

So long as bells were without stays and sliders, rais-
ing and falling was a necessary part of every piece of
ringing, and great attention was paid to the way in
which it was done. But when bells could be raised and
set at the beginning of a ringing meeting and not ceased
until it was finished, and particularly when the superior
attraction of change ringing engaged the attention of the
best bands, the tendency was to leave the pulling up and
lowering to the novices who did it much as they pleased
and as best they could. The result was that good rais-
ing and falling became a lost art among change ‘ringers,
and only survived among the backward and conserva-
tive bands of the West.

This was the state of things for a very long time,
and it would have continued indefinitely but for the in-
troduction, during the last fifty or sixty years, of ring-
ing before service on Sundays. It does not matter a
great deal how the bells are raised on Sundays, pro-
vided there is not too much indiscriminate clashing, but
it does matter how they are ceased. To pull the bells
down anyhow just as the congregation has assembled
in church, and after perhaps some excellent change ring-
ing, sounds very bad and largely spoils the effect of any
good ringing which has gone before. Good ceasing
therefore becomes a necessity and when it is done well
it adds to the effect of the bells.

But good ceasing is not easy, and it is to be feared
that bands do not give sufficient attention to the proper
way of doing it. Since it is for the outside public a very
important and noticeable part of the service ringing it
would be no bad thing if a band devoted some of their
time now and then to practising it. But that, we
imagine, is seldom or never done.

‘ Raising-and ceasing in peal,’ as the ‘' Clavis’ says,
‘ when properly executed, is undoubtedly very pleasant

(Continued on page 342.)
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and melodious,’” but ringerg should realise that the con-
ditions in which it sounds well outside are strictly
limited. In ordinary circumstances six bells are the
largest number that can be ceased, so as to give a good
effect. There arf bands who can bring down eight
bells with hardly a miss-blow, but the rate at which the
bells must follow one another spoils the outside effect,
and however accurately a ring of ten is dropped the re-
sult musically is hopeless. -

Quite a small number of heavy bells sound far better
when they are being dropped than a large number. With
a ring of ten the best way is to cease the front six first
and then the back four.

LINDOFF MEMORIAL FUND.
To the Editor.
Dear Sir,—The committee have decided to extend the date for re-
ceiving subscriptions to the Gabriel Lindoff Memorial Fund from July
31st to September 15th. The hon. treasurer of the fund has changed

his address to 118, Sandford Road, Dublin. F. E. DUKES.
Dublin.

THE GUILDFORD LIBRARY.

ACQUISITION OF BOOKS.
We have received a letter from Mr. A. C. Hazelden, the librarian
of the Guildford Diocesan Guild, which has given us great satisfaction
and which will be read with general interest. Mr. Hazelden writes:—

* | thought you might be interested in some additions to our library

resulting from the publicity in which you kindly assisted.

‘Mr. E. Morris lias sbnt us a copy each of the two Thompson
booklets, a copy of his “ Legends of the Bells,” and, by no means least,
a small 17th century book, “ de Tintinnabulis,” by Magius, dated
Amsterdam, 1664. From the same quarter | gathered information
Which led to the acquisition of an uncut copy of “ The Church Bells
of Norfolk,” 1874.

‘From Mr. Oldnall, of Birmingham, | have had a copy of Ella-
combe’s “ Bells of the Church ” (which we already had) and Lynam’s
“ Church Bells of Staffordshire,” a very line book.

* Another correspondent in Oxfordshire sent a copy of Dr. Raven's
“ Bells of England,” of special interest, as it had belonged to Dr.
Raven’s son and contains all the reviews at the time of publication.
It may have been the*>author's personal copy. This gentleman (Mr.
Malings), in return, accepted a copy of your * History of the College
Youths.”

‘ Recently one of our members, Mr. Nye, of Bagshot, had occasion
to look over a parcel of books which somebody had turned out for
salvage, and found a copy of W. C. Lukis' book, “ An Account of
Church Bells,” 1867. It now forms a second copy in our library.’

‘ De Tintinnabulis,” the book mentioned above, is the second edition
of Guslamo Magius’ book; and the one which inspired Richard Duck-
Worth to write the ‘' Tintmnalogia,’” the first book on change ringing.

HEAVY PEALS OF FIVE.
To the Editor.

Dear Sir,—I am sorry for the slip in my letter of June 17th and
obliged to Mr. Black for his correction. The peal in question is, of
course, at Castle Ashby.

I am afraid that there is a printer’'s error in the letter regarding
Ewerby bells—this peal was augmented in 1896, not 1926.

J. OLDHAM.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.

MEETING AT ROCHDALE.

The annual meeting of the Rochdale Branch of the Lancashire
Association was held at St. Chad’s, Rochdale, on July 24th, and was
exceptionally wpU attended. Ringing began about 3.30 p.m. and con-
tinued until 5, when a break was made for tea.

The business meeting was held under the chairmanship of the
president, Mr. W. Crabtree. It was decided to hold the next meeting
at St. Thomas’, Moorside, on September 11th, arrangements to be
left to the secretary. Mr. lvan Kay was re-elected secretary for the
next two years, and a resolution thanking him for past services was
passed. Mr. C. Haynes, of Oldham, was elected a performing member.

After discussion it was decided to offer any disabled member free
membership upon application, providing the committee of the associa-
tion agree. The motion will be put before them at their next meeting.

Thanks were passed to the Vicar, wardens, local ringers and all who
helped to make the meeting a success.

The towers represented were Rochdale, Hamer, Todmorden, Cross
Stones, Milnrow, Newkey, East Crompton, Moorside, Oldham Parish,
Middleton and Shore. Visitors came from Bacup, Friezland, Liver-
pool, Manchester and Accrington.
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EIGHT BELL PEALS.
WEST WYCOMBE, BUCKS.
THE OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Saturday, July 24, 1943, in Two Hours and Fifty-Three Minutes,
At the Church of Si. Lawrence,
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, S066 CHANGES®

*Sgt.-Maj. J. Pryor .. Treble sgx. J. W. Berrv
Miss D. R. Firetcher . Harrison..

F.Gc. Biggs [ 1 7
Miss K. E. Fretcher .4 H. W ingrove oo Tenor
Composed by 1. R. Pritchard. Conducted by H. W ingrove.

* First peal.

BUSHEY, HERTS.
THE HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, July 24, 1943, in Two Hours and Forty-Seven Minutes,
At the Church of St. James,
A PEAL OF CAMBRIDQE SURPRISE MAJOR, 5056 CHANGES;
Tenor 13 cwt.
Treble

Frederick W . Brinklow Chartles H. Kippin

"George M. Kilby Edwin Jennings 6
Francis Kirk . 3 Frederick E. Collins o T
M adricb F. R. Hibbbre... 4 Harotd G. Cashmorb ...Tenor

Composed by C. Middieton. Conducted by H. G. Cashmorb,

* 300th peal. Rung on the eve of St. James’ Day for the wedding
of Mr. Kenneth Stockman and Miss Jessie Rootes.-s

KIRTLINGTON, OXON.
THE OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Saturday, July 31, 1943, in Three Hours and Nineteen Minutes,
At the Church of St. Mary,
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 506 CHANGES;
Tenor 165 9wt. in E.

«Cecil G. Calcutt ... Treble’ eHerbert W. Impey 5
fWILLIAM L. B. Lbese ... 2 John E. spich 6
Bernard S. Nichols 3 W ittiam Judge - 7
Jack JUAGE e oo 4 W alter F.Judge ....Tenor

Composed by A. K nights (C.C.C. No0.112). Conducted by J. E. spice

*  First peal of Major. + First peal on tower bells. First peal as
conductor on eight tower bells.

HANDBELL PEALS.

BIRMINGHAM.

GUILD FOR THE
BIRMINGHAM.

On Saturday, July 24, 1943, in Three Hours and Three Minutes,
At the Tamworth Arms, Moor Street, City,
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAXIMUS, 5040 CHANGES;
Tenor size 17 in B flat.

THE ST. MARTIN'S DIOCESE OF

Frank W. Perrens... 1-2 J«Frank Smallwood 7-8
Albert W alker 3-4 fFRANK E. Haynes . 9-10
Frank E. Pervin 5-6 George F. Swann ... 11-12

Composed byJohn Carter. Conducted byAIbert W alker.

Referee— George E. Fearn.

* First peal of Treble Bob on handbells.
Maximus on handbells.

+ First peal of Treble Bob

ENFIELD, MIDDLESEX.
COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND
DIOCESAN GUILD.

On Wednesday, July 28, 1943, in Two Hours and Twelve Minutes,

At 45, Road,

A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, S*24 CHANGES)

THE MIDDLESEX LONDON

W alsingham

Mrs.J. Thomas ..1-2 JJdohn Thomas... .5-6
Mrs.G.W . Fletcher .3-4 |Charles W. Roberts .. 7-8
Composed by F.Bennett. Conducted byC.W.Roberts.

* 50th handbell peal.

CROFT, LEICESTERSHIRE.—On Sunday, July 25th, 1,260 Doubles,
being 600 Plain Bob and 660 Grandsire : Mrs. E. M. Dennis 1, George
Charlton 2, Charles Brown 3, William A. Wood 4, Henry Bird (con-
ductor) 5, Fred Watson 6. Rung in honour of the award of the George
Medal to Chief Radio Officer Donald Wilfred Dennis, husband of the
ringer of the treble.
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THE TUNING OF BELLS.

MORE RANDOM REM ARKS.
(Continued from page 333.)

Although the bell is one of the very earliest and most
elementary of musical instruments, as a tone producer it
is one of the most complex. This is due to the fact that,
though its whole mass is composed qf one substance, it
has two distinct functions, which are performed in vary-
ing degree by different parts.

One of these functions, and ultimately the most im-
portant, is to produce sound. This is the duty of ,the
sound-bow, a ring of metal which vibrates when struck
at a greater or less rate according to the pitch of the note
of the bell. The other function is to suspend the sound-
bow in such a way that it can vibrate freely. This is the
duty of the canons and thq crown.

It is also the real duty of the waist and the shoulders,
but thej' are not content with doing that duty; they take
a hand in the production of sound, and not only vibrate
at their own particular rates, but influence and alter the
vibrations of the sound-bow. .

The bell therefore is not an instrument which produces
a simple tone, but a rather, complicated series of rings of
metal, one above another, each of which produces a tone
ol its own, and at the same time influences the tones of
its neighbours. That is why a bell has what a&e called
overtones.

These are not overtones in the sense that the word is
generally used in connection with musical instruments.
Every instrument has overtones, even the violin string,
which is probably the simplest and most perfect of all.
For the string not only vibrates as a whole, but different
sections of it have secondary vibrations* and all of them
combine to build up and give character to the tone which
is heard. In this sense the sound-bow of a bell has over-
tones, but they are lost among the many other tones of
the bell.

A bell is an instrument which produces a number of
separate tones of varying intensity, which are not wholly
independent of.each other, nor yet necessarily have any
harmonic relationship with each other. In theory such a
thing should be hopeless as a musical instrument, and the
fact that it is not so is one of the mysteries of the bell.

Now since there are these various tones in the bell,
there must be one of two things to make it tolerable to
any ordinary musical ear. Either the tones must be
brought into harmony with each other, or else by some
means, or for some reasons, the presence of the lesser
and discordant tones escapes attention. The first is the
idea which lies behind the systems of modern tuning; the
other is the idea which in effect governed the older style.

Some people have thought that the old founders and
tuners deliberately adopted inharmonic overtones (such
as flattened seventh hum-notes) in order to get certain
desired and desirable effects; but that certainly was not
so. There is indeed one ring of bells in this country—the
octave at St. Andrew’s, Kingsbury—which was cast with
that intention. They are very fine and very musical bells,
but they stand alone. Until the closing years of the nine-
teenth century, founders and tuners in their endeavours to
produce good and tuneful bells simply ignored the over-
tones ; and, though there is a general sameness about all
the best of the old bells, the overtones of different bells,
even in the same ring, vary considerably in relative pitch.

The old founders knew quite well that the different
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parts of a bell do produce different notes. No one can
handle bells without noticing that. And it is -probable
that their ears did at times take notice of the various
tones of a bell when it is rung, but they looked upon
overtones as defects, and were well content if, when their
bells were struck, none was noticed by the hearer.

It is said that in the Low Countries during the seven-
teenth century the best of the founders, especially the
Hemonys, of Amsterdam, understood and practised tun-
ing on a five-tone principle, and it seems that the majority
of their bells are fairly correct in that respect, though
whether they have ever been subjected to the rigorous
tests the modern English founder applies to his bells we
do not know. In any case, it is quite unlikely that the
Hemonys had investigated the matter and understood
tuning in the way it is understood at Loughborough and
Croydon and Whitechapel. Men in those days did not
work on the scientific lines that men do to-day The best
craftsman did his work and got hfs results because he
was a good craftsman, but how he got his results it
would have puzzled even himself to say. This was so
much the case that it was customary to think, when a
man did superlatively good work, he was influenced by
outside powers. Men said he had a genius, not, mark
you, that he was a genius. The idea which lies behind
the doctrine of the verbal inspiration of the Bible is the
same idea raised to the highest plane. When Hemony
said that a good bell should have three octaves, two fifths,
one major and one minor third, these were the resulSs
which he had noticed in the best of his bells, not the
standard to which he consciously and deliberately aimed.
And it is most unlikely that he had enough even of em®
pirical knowledge of the'-way a bell produces its tones to.
be able to control seven or even.five tones.

It is the introduction of scientific knowledge, scientific
instruments and scientific methods which chiefly dis-
tinguishes modern tuning from the old style.

(To be continued.)

THE PEAL AT CRAYFORD.

= Aft« Peal of Stedman Triples at Crayford, reported in our last
issue, the band and some friends spent some time in social intercourse
during winch Mr Rupert Richardson asked for attention. He said
that the peal, besides being the 1,000th by Messrs. Bennett and Coles
had been rung to the memory of a very gallant young officer, Capt.
rTeddy Coles. I had the pleasure,” Mr. Richardson said, ‘of know-
"U? “ m tor many years and watched him grow up into a fine specimen
of British manhood. He obeyed his calling up notice willingly and
cheerfully, and in the Army he did well. From letters received from
1\ brothelVofficers, which | have read, there is no doubt
that he had the confidence of his men, who would follow him any-
where, and the esteem of liis fellow officers. He was Killed at the
head -of his company, when leading it into an attack. Only a few
weeks previously he had been awarded the Military Cross for a very
gallant similar ‘action, after the then company commander had been
Killed. I ask you now to drink to the memory of a very brave young
man and to join with me in sympathising with his wife and parents
in their great loss.’

Mr. C T. Coles thanked the company for their sympathy, and said
the peal was actually rung on the eve of his son’s wedding day just
a year ago. He wished to pay a tribute to the help he had received
from the late William Pye, with whom he had rung the majoritv of
his peals, and who laid the foundation of his success in attaining four
figures; and to acknowledge the help received from Bob Pye whose
health prevented him being in the peal. He also coupled the names
of James George and the late John S. Goldsmith with the peal both
of whom were to have been in previous attempts abandoned owin%—
to the war.

Mr. Bennett said he wished to identify himself with all that Mr
Coles had said about William Pye and Bob Pye, and desired to thank
the band, and especially Mr. Barnett for arranging the peal attempt.

CHESTER”-On Saturday, on July 31st, on the front six at the
Cathedral, 720 Oxford Treble Bob Minor: F Fox 1 R Sperrine- (con-
ductor) 2, T. Taylor 3, J. Worth 4, J. W. Clarke 5, H. Parker 6
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BELFRY GOSSIP. '

At the Sheffield and District Society’'s meeting at Handsworth to-
morrow, the ringing will begin at 3 o’clock, not the tea as announced
last week.

Mr. Ernest Morris, of Leicester, has given a series of five lectures
to three separate units of the R.A.P.C. His subjects were bells, bell-
ringing, bellfounding, bells of all nations and carillons. These lectures
have been popular and much appreciated.

Sixty years ago to-day the' Cumbertands rang the first peal on the
bells of St. Andrew’s, Wells Street, London. The method was Kent
Treble Bob Major, and two men were needed at the tenor. These
bells, which have a definite place in the story of bell tuning, have since
been moved with the tower and the whole Qhurch to Kingsbury,
Middlesex.

Fifty years ago to-day, James W. Washbrook called the first peal—
one of Grandsire Caters—on the heavy ring at Yeovil in Somerset.
Mr. Edwin Shepherd is the sole survivor of the band.

On August 1st, 1828, four of the Cumberland Youths rang on hand-
bells, ‘up in hand’ at the Sign of the Green Dragon, Poplar, the
first handbell peal of Grandsire Triples. Edmund Giles rang 3-4 and
conducted.

The twelve bells of St. Saviour's, Southwark, were opened by the
College Youths on' August 3rd, 1735 and the twelve bells at Quex
Park by bands of Cumberlands and College Youths on August 4th, 1819.

The record peal of Cambridge Maximus, 15,312 changes, was rung
at Ashton-under-Lyne on August 5th, 1929.

Ten years later on the same date the first peal of Airdale Surprise
Major was rung at Northowram, Halifax, and the first peal of Gonville
Bob Major at Chester.

On August 6th, 1821, the Huddersfield band rang 5.600 changes of
Superlative Surprise Major. The composition was false.

The first peal of Lancashire Surprise Major was, rung at Oswald-
twistle on August 7th, 1922.

THE GOLDSMITH MEMORIAL.
To the Editor.

Dear Sir,—I fully agree with the spirit of the letter in this week’s
‘ Binging World.” from Mr. R. H. Dove, but X altogether disagree
with the details.

What good would it do ringers generally to provide a new peal of
bells for Guildford Cathedral, or how would that be a fitting memorial
for the late Mr. Goldsmith? The cost would be heavy, much more
than ringers would be justified in spending in the present or future
circumstances, and very few ringers would ever have an opportunity
of hearing the bells. Guildford has already got two good, peals of
eight and, ! believe, one or two sixes, and if the town wants another
peal it is only right that it should provide it itself. Besides, the tower
Is not built and will not be built for a good many years. The Guild-
ford diocese is, for its size, richer than almost any other, and the
people ought to pay for their own cathedral, and, according to Mr.
Grover, that is their intention.

It was a very nice thing for ringers to provide the Stedman
memorial, but it is a fair question to ask: What real good has it
actually done? And how much better is Stedman known because of it?

' *NORTH COUNTRY RINGER.

HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION.

COMPOSITIONS WANTED.
To the Editor.

Dear Sir,—Mr. Edwin Jennings and | are at present engaged on
the task of collecting the figures of all peal compositions rung for
the Hertford County Association since its inception.

Should any of your readers have called any peals for the association
or know the figures of any peals called by conductors now dead, |
should be pleased if they would forward them to,Mr. Jennings or
myself.

¥Ne do not need the figures of well-known compositions, but only of
those peals which are not identifiable from the published report.

H. G. CASHMORE.

24, Muriel Avenue, Watford.

LLANSTEPHAN BELLS.

(Continued from next column.)
it was quite in.order, and in any case the bells were rung. The
Church said it lied tried to get eight persons, and to this day it lias
not yet been straightened out, and nobody knows if any interest has
been paid out during recent years.

I tried to find out if the ban on ringing for 2J years did not entitle
the Infirmary to the interest, but there was no reply.

Such was the feeling in the parish about this bequest, and so
divided was the parish, that the Bishop of St. David's came down
to intervene, but the dispute still remains. The bequest is now in
the hands of the governing body of the Church in Wales, and they
discussed it recently, but, strange to say, the Infirmary authorities
are not interested in the matter.

EDWARD J. THOMAS.

Elephant and Castle, Carmarthen.
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LLANSTEPHAN BELLS.

THE STORY OF A WILL.
To the Editor

Dear Sir,—Llanstephan is a beautiful little village about eight miles
from Carmarthen and well known to holiday-makers who desire a
very restful and peaceful time. As one approaches Ferryside on the
railway and looks across the water, the old Castle and Church can
be plainly seen.

The Castle was the scene of very lieavy fighting in the 11th and
12th centuries, and was said to have been destroyed- in 1136 by the
sons of Gruffudd ab-Cyan; this name is frequently mentioned and
known to students of early Welsh history.

The ancient church, with its Norman tower, embattled with a
corner turret, and substantially built, shows great age. In ancient
times the church was served by itinerant preachers sent from the
Monastic Priory of Carmarthen, who probably owned the tithes. On
the dissolution of the monasteries in the time of Henry VIII., the
Rectory of Llanstephan was granted by the Crown to one of the
Earls of Northumberland, and has since passed with the Rectorial.
tithes through various hands.

The characteristic features of the church are its massive barrel
vaulting roof, and its rude Gothic arches, which have neither mould-
ings, splay, nor capitals: these arches have the appearance of having
been cut out of the walls after the latter have been'built. The place
of the holy water stoup is still to be seen in the south porch, and
above the inner door of the same porch was the niche which contained
an image of the Virgin.

GIFT OF BELLS.

In 1756 George Lloyd, Mears, of the Plas, Llanstephan, presented
the church with a chalice, two patons and a flagon, all silver and
each article beautifully inscribed. The chalice is known as the
‘ Cocoanut Chalyce,” and the top is formed from the shell, of a special
kind of cocoanut. and is mounted on ebony, has silver bands en-
circling, and bears the above inscription.. There are only three of
these in existence, and it was in use up to a recent date.

The Rev. J. T. Wade-Evans, one time Vicar of Stow-on-the-Wold,
Glos, in his great work, ‘ The Church Plate of Carmarthenshire,” gives
a good description of this chalice. »

In 1875, Henry JParnell, who was a wholesale clothier of Bishopsgate
Street, London, presented a peal of eight bells with tenor about
19 cwt., together with a chiming apparatus, cast by Mears and. Stain-
bank, and these* bells are reputed to be the best for tone in the county
of Carmarthenshire. 1 do not know what system of tuning was em-
ployed, and perhaps Mr. A. A. Hughes could settle this point. A
team of *Ancient College Youths * came down from London at the
donor’s expense, and remained in the village for a fortnight. It is
recorded that these bells were first rung on January 1st, 1876, to
ring in the new year. The *College Youths ' rang a peal of *Grand-
sire Triples,* and taught local people, to ring and formed a local band
of ringers before returning to London.

By the will of Ann Parnell, the donor’s sister, dated November
26th, 1891, she left £400 for the ringers, and instead of this bequest
being a great help to the village, in recent years it has divided it
and created discord. The clause in the will reads:—

* | give and bequeath the sum of £400 to the Vicar and Church-
wardens of the Parish of Llanstephan to invest same, and apply the
interest thereof amongst eight persons, to be of sober aijd respectable
mien, as shall be employed by the Vicar and Churchwardens as Bell-
ringers to ring the Bells of the Parish Church of Llanstephan aforesaid
in such proportions and at such times as the Vicar and Church-
wardens and their successors, or the majority of them in case of
difference may in their discretion think proper and expedient. And I
declare that such last-mentioned bequest of £400 is made on condition
that the aforesaid bells be rung- in.the Usual course regularly on each
Sunday, and in default thereof I give the last-mentioned sum of £400
to the Treasurer of the Carmarthen County Infirmary for the general
purposes of ths Infirmary/

A PARLIAMENTARY ENQUIRY.

On February 29th, 1898, an enquiry was held into the various
charities of the village, and the House of Commons ordered on
February 20th, 1899, that the proceedings with the evidence should
be printed. At this enquiry it was stated that the annual income
of the bequest of Ann Parnell was £9 4s., and same was divided by
the Vicar amongst the bellringers, who are 10 in number, in propor-
tion to their respective attendances. The names of the bellringers,
together with the number of attendances made and the sum received
by each of them quarterly, are affixed to a board which is hung up
in the church porch. The accounts, too, are published every year.

In 1929, when the present Vicar was inducted into the living, several v
of the ringers had left the parish, and some of the St. Peter’'s band
at Carmarthen went down to assist. The Vicar tried to keep the
bells going, and put certain proposals before the ringers, which they
claimed were not in accordance with the bequest of Ann Parnell. All
the ringers I$ft, and the Vicar had to resort to the chiming apparatus.

In the local Press, a wordy warfare went on. One side claimed
that the b"lls were not rung,Mnd the £400 should go to the Infirmary.

_The other side claimed that as Parnell paid for the chiming apparatus

.(Continued in previous column.)



August 6th, 1943. 't

TRIPLE TOWERS.

By Ernf.st Morris.
, (Continued from page 337.)

Somerset is the county of grand church towers and
noted for its heavy rings of bells. These include the
heaviest ringing peal of six' (Queen’s Camel) and ten in
the kingdom. The latter are in the south-west tower of
the grand Cathedral of Wells, and the tenor weighs
56 cwt. 1 gr. 14 Ib.

Wells Cathedral bells have a long and interesting his-
tory. The Fabric Rolls show that in 1586 the ‘ Great Bell
to be placed by the Master of the Fabric in the Towerj
and the fragments of metal to be sold.” The next year
we read that ‘ Harewell's great bell to be recast by
Joseph Carter, of Reading.” In 1627 the Corporation
gave 40s. towards recasting the Cathedral bells. In 1670
‘Mr. James, of Bristole, gave for metal for Harewell's
bell 217 15s.,” and cost of ‘ agreement between Thomas
Purdue and Dean ' was 2s. Purdue was paid £25 for
‘forming the bell called Harewell’

For many years the ring numbered eight being the

heaviest octave in England, but in 1891 k was decided to
have them rehung and augmented to ten. This was done
and two trebles added by Mears and Stainbank, and the
rehanging in an iron frame carried out by Messrs. Black-
bourn and Greenleaf, of Salisbury, The 9th and tenor
are by Messrs. J. Taylor and Co., and dated 1877. When
the ring was opened, members of the Oxford Diocesan
Guild were engaged for the occasion, and after the dedica-
tion a peal of Stedman Caters was started with the late
J. W. Washbrook as conductor. He called his own com-
position and attempted to ring the tenor single-handed.
The rest of the band were: Fred White 1, G. H. Philott,
M.A., 2, Charles Hounslow 3, T. Blackbourn 4, Rev. H.
A. Cockey 5, Rev. F. E. Robinson 6, Wm. W . Gifford 7,
James Hinton 8, Richard T. Hibbert 9. Washbrook
rank the tenor for 3J hours and then turned it over to
Wm. Greenleaf, still .retaining his position by the bell
and finishing the conducting. It was a magnificent
heavy-bell performance, for with the old style of plain
bearings it was a rare thing for a bell to go well until
it had been rung~for some time.
i Washbrook completely eclipsed this feat some four
years later, and actually turned it in single-handed to a
peal of Kent Treble Bob Royal, an outstanding heavy-bell
performance. The day following the peal at the Cathe-
dral, Washbrook*turned the 29 cwt. tenor at St. Cuth-
bert, Wells, into a peal of Double Norwich Major, while
the next da,y he conducted a peal of Stedman Triples at
Prestbury, and another of Caters at Cheltenham. Since
those days other peals have been rung at Wells, but only
on rare occasions has the complete 5,000 been accom-
plished.

Although Bristol possesses more rings of bells than
almost any other city in England, yet, strange to say,
its cathedral, which has three towers, can only boast of
four bells. These hang in the central tower. The smal-

G. & F. COPE & CO.

NOTTINGHAM

Tower Clock Manufacturers

THE RINGING WORLD.

345

lest, 28f inches diameter, has an inscription in black
letter alphabet, with invocation to Saint Clement. It
also bears a shield placed sideways, depicting a bleeding
heart pierced with nails, and the letters I.N. in Lom-
bardic capitals on either side. This is a rebus on the
name of Abbot Newland, alias ‘ Nailheart,” who died in
,1486. The second bell, 31) inches diameter, has an in-
vocation to St. Margaret, also in black letter alphabet.
The third, 35J) inches diaxneter, in highly ornamented
Lombardic capitals, says, ‘+CLARA:VOCOR:ET:
CLARIOR:ERO ' /(I am called Clara, and will be
clearer). The largest, 48J) inches diameter, was cast" by
Robert Purdue in 1670, and in large Roman capitals bears
an inscription in Latin, meaning, ‘' The Cathedral Church
of Bristol, the house of the Lord, call a solemn assembly.’
The two western towers bear the names of Bishop Butler
and Edward Colston. ,

The glorious Cathedral of Lincoln now possesses a
grand ring of twelve, tenor 23 cwt. 3 qr. 13 Ib. The
history of bells at Lincoln is very, comprehensively given
in North's ‘ Church Bells of Lincolnshire,” but briefly it
is as follows: Two bells were given by Robert de Ches-
ney, fourth Bishop of Lincoln, in the middle of the 12th
century, and were hung in the western towers. Two
more were placed in the central tower between 1307 and
1311. Others were added at various times until the 18th
century, when we find a ring of six in this tower. These
were commonly known as the ‘ Lady Bells.” The four
larger ones were cast hy Robert Quernbie and Henry
Oldfield in 1593. At that time the old Great Tom hung
in the north-west tower and weighed 88 cwt. 1 qr. 10]Ib.
This was cracked in 1827, and after several attempts to
remedy it an estimate by T. Mears was accepted for
casting a new Great Tom and two quarter bells frorp the
metal of the old bell and the six Lady bells, all of which
were shipped olf to London on June 23rd, 1834. The new
bell, weighing 5 tons 8 cwt., was cast November 15th
that year, and brought to Lincoln by road, arriving on
April 30th, .1835, amid great rejoicing.

In 1880 the two quarter bells were replaced by four
bells arranged for the Cambridge chimes, the largest
weighing 27 cwt. 2 gr. 7 Ib. At this time there was a
ring of eight, with a tenor 16J cwt., in the south-west
tower. In 1913 these were all recast by Messrs. J. Tay-
lor and Co., the old 7th and tenor being retained as ser-
vice bells. In 1928 four additional bells were added as
a memorial to the ringers of the diocese who fell in the
Great War. The tower itself was completely restored
and the bells lowered some 30ft. The ceiling and roof
of the tower removed and replaced by a lantern roof
resting on reinforced concrete piers. The lower louvres
have been closed, and the sound therefore travels unin-
terrupted to the top of the tower before escaping. Thus
the sound of the bells is moderated in the vicinity but
carried in full mellowness far across the surrounding
country. Since their inauguration a number of fine peals

(Continued on next page.)
Estimates submitted for New
Clocks, Chime Additions, Re-
pairs, or Repainting of Dials
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TRIPLE TOWERS.

(Continued from previous page.)
of Cinques and Maximus have been successfully rung' on
the bells. An account of the ancient ‘Companie of
Ringers ' formed here in 1612 will be seen in my ‘ History
and Art of Change Ringing.’

The vastness of York Minster—or Cathedral of St.
Peter—with its forest of clustered pillars, its unrivalled
ancient stained glass, its importance as the metropolitan
church of Northern England, combine to make this splen-
did structure one of the most interesting in the kingdom.
The central tower, rising to a height of 216ft., is the
largest “n England. It is one of the greatest achieve-
ments of the 15th century (1410-1433), and is one of the
finest in the world. The east window is the largest win-
dow in England retaining its original glazing, although
in actual size is surpassed by that of Gloucester. In the
north-west tower hangs Great Peter, the third largest bell
in England, recast in 1927 by Messrs. J. Taylor and Co.,
and now weighing 10 ton 16.cwt. 2 gr. 22 Ib. Its note is
E flat and is said to be the deepest-toned church bell in
Christendom.

In the south-west tower hangs the grand ring of twelve
(with additional semitone). As the full history of these
bells has already been given in these columns, all that |
need add is that the whole ring were recast with additional
metal in 1926 by Messrs. J. Taylor and Co., and rehung
in a new iron and steel frame. The tenor is now 60 cwt.,
the third heaviest in existence—it will be fourth when
Liverpool bells are completed. The writer had the good
fortune to be stationed in York for two years during the
Great War (1917-18), and during that period did most
of the conducting of Sunday service ringing on the old
ring,, tenor 53J) cwt., the chief and most eventful occasion
being when, on the proclamation that Armistice was
signed, he called the touch for the special service of
thanksgiving at which over 5,000 people attended. The
two western towers are 201ft. high.

Durham Cathedral Church of Christ and the Blessed
Virgin Mary is the glory'of this ancient city. Its two
west towers are 144ft., and the central tower 218ft. high.
The present structure, which replaced an earlier one, was
begun in the 1lth century, and much of it is Norman.
The Galilee chapel is a notable feature, as are the central
tower and the chapel of the nine altars. For some very
interesting notes on the ancient customs of ringing the
bells here in mediaeval times, copied from *‘ The Rites
of Durham, being a description of all the ancient monu-
ments, rites and customs belonging to or being within
the Monastical Church of Durham before the Suppres-
sion, written 1593, | would refer the reader to my letter
in these columns of September 29th, 1939." All | need
add is that in 1693 the bells were cast into a ring of eight
by Christopher Hodson, of London. Three of them have
since been recast, the treble in 1780 by Pack and Chap-
man, the third in 1781 by Chapman, the fourth in 1896
by Mears and Stainbank.
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Mr. W. Story, of Newcastle, writes: ‘ The approach
to the.belfry is first by a broad flight of spiral steps from
the north-west corner of the south transept, thence a
long walk under the roof of the transept to a narrow
spiral stairway in the north-west corner of the central
tower—a tremendous climb! | rang the tenor to the first
peal on the bells many years ago by candle light before
they were rehung; and later the same bell to the third,
both in the same time, 3 hours 22 minutes.’

Peterborough Cathedral, besides having a central
tower, has two lofty western towers, or turrets, flanked
at the angles with clustered shafts and crowned with
spires. Its noble west front is said to be the finest portico
in Europe. Records of bells here date from very early
times,-and as early as 1250.we find that Abbot John de
Caleto gave a great bell to the monastery at Peter-
borough. A little later Richard de London, sacrist, gave
two more bells. Numerous other notes on the bells occur
in later years, till at the time of the Commonwealth we
find that a heavy ring of ten bells was hanging in the
tower. It is recorded that Cromwell’'s soldiers were
quartered in the cathedral for some time, and that they
used to amuse themselves by jangling the bells at all
hours, night and day, much to the annoyance of the in-
habitants,of Peterborough, who managed secretly to re-
move the clappers and ,hide them, and so' put a stop to
the nuisance. The tenor of this ring must have weighed
60 cwt.

In 1709 Henry Penn, the Peterborough bell founder,
agreed to cast a tunable peal of ten out of the four largest
of the above-mentioned ring with a little additional metal,
taking for his payment the front six bells. A ring of ten,
with a tenor 32 cwt., was then’ erected, when, after being
in use for over 120 years, the 9th became cracked. At
that time the tower was deemed unsafe, and it was re-
solved to sell the front five bells, with the idea of reduc-
ing the strain thereon. This was done, and Wailliam
Dobson, of Downham, Norfolk, bought them, at the same
time recasting the 9th (now the fourth)'in 1831. Thus
Peterborough Cathedral still only has this part ring of
five bells, although just prior to the present war a scheme
was advanced to restore the tower and erect a ring.of

twelve.
(To be continued.)

THE BLOCKING UP OF WINDOWS.
To the Editor. s

Dear Sir,—The architect for the Borough of Blackpool, Mr.
Robinson, writes to inform me that he was never consulted regarding
the building up of St. John’s Church tower windows, and the sugges-
tion that the interior' lining of the bell chamber would be affected by
sound waves was not made by him. | beg to apologise to Mr. Robin-
son for the implication and hope he has suffered no inconvenience.

The gentleman who made the statement was in no way connected
with the municipality. C. SHARPLES.

STAUNTON-ON-ARROW, HEREFORDSHIRE.—On Thursday, July
22nd a quarter-peal of Grandsire Doubles, 10 callings: Mrs. H.
Chandler 1. T. Jones (conductor) 2, J. Preece 3. L. Evans 4. B.
Ellsmore, R.A.F. 5, J. Petrie (first quarter-peal) 6. Rung half-
muffled in memory of Sergt. W. J. Preece, a former member of the
band and the church choir.

SMITH d DERBY

for Church and Turret Clocks

Electric or Weight Driven

Makers of many famous Clocks, including St. Paul's Cathedral, London, and throughout the world.

JOHN SMITH & SONS, Midland Clock Works, Derby, Ltd.

queen ™ treet” derby
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NOTICES.

THE CHARGE FOR NOTICES of Meetings inserted
under this heading is at the rate of 4d. per line (average
8 words) per insertion, with the minimum charge oi §/-.

For Notices other than of Meetings 6d. per fine
(minimum 2/6).

NOTICES must be received NOT LATER THAN
MONDAY.

‘ The Ringing World ' can be sent direct by post from
the Editorial Office for 4s. 3d. per quarter.

All communications should be sent to The Editorial
O ffice of ‘' The Ringing World,” Lower Pyrford
Road, Woking, Surrey.

ESSEX ASSOCIATION.— Meeting at Loughton on
Saturday, August 7th. Bells 3 p.m. Service at 4.30.
Tea 5.—J. H. Crampion, Hon. Sec., 14, Wellesley Road,
Wanstead, E.l1.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.—V.W.H. Branch-
Annual meeting at Faringdon on Saturday, August 7th.
Bells (8) 2.30. Service 4.30.—R. F. J. Gilling, Hon.
Sec., Fernham, Faringdon.

SHEFFIELD AND DISTRICT SOCIETY.— Meeting
at Handsworth (8 bells) on Saturday, August 7th, at 3 p.m.
—G. G. Graham, Hon. Sec., 5, Pipworth Lane, Eckington.

HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Northern
District.—Meeting at Hitchin, Saturday, August 7th.
Bells 3 p.m. Meeting in the tower at 6 p.m. Own ar-
rangements for tea.— A. E. Symonds, Dis. Sec.

PETERBOROUGH DIOCESAN GUILD.— Daventrv
Branch. =— Rededifcation of six!bells at Njewnham on
Saturday, Aug. 7th. Service at 3 p.m.—W. C. Moore,
5, Williams Terrace, Daventry, Northants.

ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS—
Meeting at the Bell Foundry, 34, Whitechapel Road, on
Sat., Aug. l4th, 3 p.m. Service ringing at Stepney Aug.
15th) 9.30 a.m.—A. B. Peck, 1, Eversfield Road, Reigate.

SURREY ASSOCIATION. — Southern District. —
Meeting at Reigate, Saturday, August 14th. Bells (10)
3.30 p.m. Service 5 p.m. Tea 5.45 p.m. *Names before
August 9th. Talk by Mr. A. A. Hughes, 4Bells and Bell-
ringing,” 6.30 p.m.— Alfred Gear, Sandy Way, The Cut-
ting, Redhill.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION— Fylde Branch—
The annual meeting at St. Anne's Parish Church on
Saturday, Aug. 14th. Bells 3 p.m. Meeting 6 p.m.
Cups of tea provided; bring own food.—J. H. Foster,
Branch Sec.

BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
—Frome Deanery. — Meeting at Radstock, Saturday,
| Ayg. 14th. Bells (6) 3 p.m. Service 4 p.m. Tea and
meeting to follow. Names before Aug. 11th to E. H.
Nash, The Talbot, Mells.

BARNSLEY DISTRICT SOCIETY. Meeting at
Wentworth on Saturday, Aug. 14th." Bells (6) 3 p.m.
Tea 2s. Notify Mr. G. West, 25, The Square, Went-
worth, near Rotherham, before Aug. ll1th.—D. Smith,
Hon. Sec., 28, Chapel Street, Shafton, near Barnsley.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION— Bolton Branch' —
Meeting at St. Paul's, Walkden, on Saturday, Aug.
14th. . Bells 3 p.m. Business meeting 6.30 p.m.— Peter
Crook, Hon. Sec.

PETERBOROUGH DIOCESAN GUILD— Meeting
at YelVertoft on Saturday, Aug. 14th. Bells (5) 3 p.m.
Bring own food. A cup of tea provided. — C. Green,
Branch Sec., Murcott, Long Buckby, near Rugby.
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HERTS COUNTY ASSOCIATION— St. Albans Dis-
trict.— Meeting on Saturday, August 14th, at North
Mimms, at 3 p.m. Names fof tea by August 1ith to R.
W . Darvill, Dis. Sec., 23, EIm Drive, St. Albans.

LLANDAFF AND MONMOUTH DIOCESAN AS-
SOCIATION. — Meeting- at Caerleon on Saturday,
August 14th. Bells 3 o’clock. Business meeting 4
o'clock.—J. W. Jones, Hon. Sec.

NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
Meeting at Cheddleton (6 bells) on Saturday, Aug.

14th. Names for tea to Mr. H. Sutton, 22, The Avenue,
Cheddleton, Leek, Staffs, before Aug. 7th. No card,
no tea. Cheadle meeting Aug. 28th.

LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.—Northern Branch.
— Gainsborough District. — Meeting at H*xey, Isle of
Axholme, on Saturday, Aug. 14th. Bells (6) afternoon
and evening. Bring own tea.—Geo. L* A. Lunn, Hon.
Sec., 248, Lea Road, Gainsborough.

HOLLESLEY, SUFFOLK.—Ringing- meeting, Aug.
14th, 5 p.m. to 9 p.m.—C. W. Pipe.

WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIA-
TION— Northern Branch.—Meeting at Halesowen,
Saturday, August 21st. Bells (8) 3 p.m. Tea 5.15 p.m.,
in Church School. Bells afterwards to 9 p.m. Also
handbells. Numbers for tea by 19th.— Bernard C. Ash-
ford, Sec., 9, Bowling Green Road, Stourbridge.

LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD. Elloe Deaneries
Branch. — Quarterly meeting at Surfleet on Saturday,

Aug. 21st. Bells (12) 2 p.m. Service 3.15. Tea at
Glyn Garth 4 p.m. Names for tea before Aug. 17th.—
W. A. Richardson, Hon. Sec., Glensidle, pinchbeck,

Spalding.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Blackburn Branch.
Meeting at Padiham on Saturday, Aug. 21st. Bells 3
p.m. Meeting 6 p.m.—F. Hindle, Branch Sec., 58,
Anvil Street, Blackburn.

LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD— Northern Branch.
— Meeting at Scunthorpe on Saturday, Aug. 21st.
Further particulars next week.—J. Bray, Hon. Sec.

SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION— Eastern Divi-
sion.—Joint meeting with the East Grinstead and Dis-

trict Guild at Rotherfield, Saturday, Aug. 21st. De-
tails next week.—Jr>hn Downing, Acting Hon. Sec.
CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD— Annual festival at

Crewe on Saturday, 25th. Further particulars

later.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS. Mr. W. H. Wilson,
Hon. Treasurer, Lindoff Memorial Fund, has changed
his address to 118, Sandford Road, Dublin.

Sept.

BIRTH.
WORRALL.—On July 24th, 1943, at the Chester City
Hospital, to Edith (nee Sanders), wife of R. W.
Worrall, Hillcroft, Vale Road, Hartford, a son.

SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
MEETING AT PULBOROUGH.

A meeting of the Western Division of the Sussex County Association
was held at Pulborough on Saturday, July 24th, when ringers were
present from Billingshurst, Chichester, Goring,” Haywards Heath,
Heene, Henfield, Lower Beeding, Lyminster, Storrington, Waraham]
West Grinstead, Wisborough Green and the local band. The bells
were put to good use during the afternoon and evening, the ringing
including rounds Doubles, Minor, Grandsire and Stedman Triples and
Bob Major.

After tea a meeting was held in the church, presided over by the
Rector, the Rev. E. I. Frost, who also conducted the service. Miss
Joyce Humphrey, Chichester, and Mrs. L. Stilwell, Pulborough. were
elected members and Mr. J. H. Paice and Mr. H. Colley re-elected.
Lyminster was selected for the next meeting, to be held 111 September.
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The Jasper Snowdon Senes rye \oRLD'S BEST BELLROPES'

NOW READY.
NOTED FOR E&8Y HANDLING AMD NON STRETCHING
STANDARD METHODS

Eat. 1820 e Tel. 2400
IN THE

ART OF CHANGE RINGING ,JOHN PR|TCHARD « Ltd

Tenth Edition

AnENTIRELY NEW WORK by J. Armiger Trollope, LOUGHBOROUGH

giving rules and directions for ringing- methods on 5, 6, I bef . .

7 and 8 bells, from Plain Bob to London Surprise, and ©Order your Bell Ropes now, before prices increase,
including Yorkshire and Bristol Surprise. pre-war quality, and send us your old Bell Ropes for

) repairs whilst not in use.
Price 2s. 10d.

Post free, on receipt of postal order, from Clock and Chiming Ropes. Flexible Ends, Splicing and Repairs

MiSS MARGARET E SNOWDON RINGING MATS AND BELL MUFFLERS

Woodland*, Newby Bridge, Ulverston, Lanoa
THE RINGER'S BADGE,

WM. POTTS & SONS, LTD. ) supplied a5 Swd for_ suttonnole

11 Brooch or Pendant
(ESTABLISHED 1833).

(jg) With name of your Association engraved
N —as Illustration.
CATHEDRAL, CHURCH AND TOWER CLOCK MANUFACTURERS get. HALL MARKED GOLD .. 45
HALL MARKED SILVER . 7
Makers of many of the largest and most Important Clocks GILT OR WHITE METAL w 41-
In the World. q W Names or Presentation Inscriptions can t
ISS WE| b d thi id t
CLOCKS REPAIRED AND DIALS RESTORED. y BSIJ\l © engravec o exterareg’ﬁ;fgee side at a

‘THE GUILDFORD CLOCK WORKS/
Bankfield Terrace, Burley, Leeds. I\/I a r GEO.S TM Ets: ™

]

And at 9, Adelphl Chambers, Shakespeare St., Exaot sire 6, mR(ST, M|\E—|AD8J\EE|'

Newoastle-on-Tyne,

and 96, Carver Street, Moorhead, Sheffield. SILVER BELL INKSTANDS

ESTABLISHED 1760

JOHN NICOLL,

Church Bell Rope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer,

64, LEWISHAM PARK, LONDON, S.E.13

Late of BERMONDSEY and PECKHAM.

Maker to St. Paul's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey, Imperial Insti-

tute, Canterbury, Edinburgh, St. Albans, Lincoln,'Durham, Peter- WE MUCH REGRET

borough, Melbourne (Australia), Rochester, Dublin, St. Patrick’s, that we are no Ionger permitted to make
Manchester, Durban and Worcester Cathedrals, etc., etc. SILVER BELL INKSTANDS. and our
Mufflers, Ringing Mats, Matting, Flag Lines, etc., etc. reserve stock has now gone.

When normal times return we hope we
shall renew the pleasure of supplying

THE RINGERS’' HANDBOOK our numerous bellringing clients.

by E. S. and M. POWELL.
Containing full and complete instruction from the first handling
of a bell to the ringing and conducting of peals of Grandsire,
Stedman, Plain Bob and Kent Treble Bob. T . E . R U S S E L L 3e\/\/e||er
Large selection of Compositions included. ) !
Price:— Complete edition, to 8 bells, cloth, 120pp., 2/9
(6 copies for 15/-); 6 bell edition sewn, paper covers, 64pp., 291 CH ERTSEY ROAD’ WO K I N G
1/2 (6 copies for 6 /-)

Printed for the Proprietors Executors of the late J. S. Goldsmith,
Ototatnewe only post free from Rev. E. 8 POWELL. by the Woodbridge. Pre«6, Ltd., Guildford and Published by the Rolls
mverton cara®e, near Daventry. House Publishing Co., Ltd., Breams Buildings, London, E.C.4.



